
 

 

 
March 5, 2018 

 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular session on Monday, 

March 5, 2018 at 6:00 PM at the Beaufort County Community College (BCCC) Washington 

County Center (WCC) located at 100 NC Hwy 32 North, Roper, NC.  Commissioners Phelps, 

Riddick, Sexton and Walker were present.  Also present were County Manager/County Attorney 

Curtis Potter and Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett.  Commissioner Johnson was not in 

attendance as she was attending a NACo Legislative Meeting in Washington, DC. 

 

Commissioner Walker gave the invocation.  Mr. Lloyd Jones led the pledge of allegiance.  

 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS: Ms. Bennett added a Closed Session pursuant to NCGS §143-

318.11(a)(1) (confidential information) to review Closed Session Minutes.  

 

 CONSENT AGENDA:   

 

a) Approval of Minutes from January 30, 2018 and February 5, 2018 

b) Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accounts 

c) Resolution: Water Meter Replacement Loan—DENR Promissory Note 

 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion approve the Consent Agenda.  Commissioner 

Riddick seconded, motion passed unanimously.   

 

PUBLIC FORUM: Ms. Laura Oliver, former Washington County 4-H Agent, now Martin 

County Cooperative Extension Director, introduced Ms. Beth Jackson as the new 4-H agent for 

Washington County.  Ms. Jackson was recently the 4-H Agent for Chowan County.  Ms. Jackson 

spoke to the Board and said she was excited to be working for Washington County.  

 

TRILLIUM UPATE:  Mr. Dave Peterson, Regional Director for Trillium, spoke to the 

Board and thanked Commissioner Tracey Johnson and Ms. Melanie Ashe, CEO, Washington 

County Hospital, for their support in Trillium’s transition.  Mr. Peterson gave the following 

presentation. 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 Mr. Peterson stated that $53M was cut from Trillium this year. He also noted 

Wilmington, NC has the largest amount of opioid abusers in the US. Mr. Peterson said that of all 

the local opioid forums that have been held, the Martin-Tyrrell-Washington County opioid forum 

was one of the best. 

 

Commissioner Phelps asked how a citizen can take advantage of Trillium’s services.  

Commissioner Phelps stated that as an attorney, the courts order substance abuse programs for 

some of his clients.  Mr. Peterson said Trillium has a 24/7 Access to Care line. The number is 

877-685-2415.  

 

Since the County received $3M from the state for the opioid situation, Commissioner 

Sexton asked how it will be used.  Mr. Peterson said the state determined 8 services that the 

money could be used for—three of those services are for detox, Substance Abuse 

Comprehensive Outpatient Treatment (SACOT), and supportive employment. 

 

Commissioner Riddick asked if Trillium could reapply after 2 years for the grant Mr. 

Peterson mentioned.  Mr. Peterson said the Feds just put aside $6B for states with opioid abusers, 

so we will have to wait and see. Fayetteville, Jacksonville and Wilmington are in the top 20 of 

opioid abusive cities in the country. 

 

UPDATE ON NEWLAND ROAD:  Commissioner Phelps had a conversation with Mr. 

Alan Moran, NCDOT Governor’s appointee.  Commissioner Phelps stated that some guard rails 

are being installed and the rough road sign was moved.  Commissioner Phelps said he will be 

bringing a letter of support for the Board to sign for more funds for Washington County roads.  

Commissioner Sexton said at the RPO meeting, he told the NCDOT reps they need to count the 

actual trucks coming and going from the other end of Newland Road also. 

 

LOCAL SALES TAX MARKETING INFORMATION:  Mr. Potter went over the memo 

below with the background on the local sales tax marketing information and the tentative action 

plan. 



 

 



 

 



 

 
 

  Mr. Potter said he will really try to get across to the citizens that it is not an additional 

property tax.  Mr. Potter said there is a budget amendment in the Commissioners’ package for 

$3,900 that was available from some worker’s comp issues that were resolved and he would like 

to use it for the Local Sales Option Tax referendum marketing. These County funds can be used 

to educate the citizens.  Mr. Potter went over the tentative action plan. 

 

Mr. Potter he said he hopes this ¼ cent tax will raise $177,000. This would make the 

current 6.75% sales tax an even 7% sales and use tax.  

 



 

Commissioner Phelps asked about partnering with the schools to send information home 

with the students.  Mr. Potter said he has not followed up with the school system yet.  

  

Commissioner Phelps asked if Mr. Potter was going to set dates for meetings in the three 

towns.  Commissioner Phelps said he feels it is very important to do this.  Mr. Potter said he is 

planning to attend the three town council meetings.  If organizations request him to speak to 

them, he will.   

 

Commissioner Phelps said voters may vote for the tax if they know what the extra money 

will be used for.  Mr. Potter said he is not sure if that would work, but if it would, he feels it 

should be for the EMS system since they lose money each year and even with this money, some 

funds would still have to come out of the County’s general fund.  The Board can do a resolution 

on where to spend this year’s money, but it would not bind a future Board from changing it. 

 

 DSS FOSTER CHILD INFORMATION: Mr. Clifton Hardison had been asked by the Board to 

come and speak to them about Foster Child Care. Mr. Hardison said the bottom line is that the County 

spends approximately $158 per child per month for a child in foster care.  Commissioner Sexton said 

that his church announced they were going to start training folks to help take kids in. Mr. Hardison said 

there is only one licensed foster care home locally in Plymouth.  Mr. Hardison explained that DSS has 

more kids in custody now than usual. Mr. Hardison said there is a process that folks have to follow if 

they want to be foster parents.  Commissioner Sexton asked if the number of foster parents in the 

County is falling off.  Mr. Hardison said no, there is a shortage of foster parents because DSS has more 

kids to place in homes. Commissioner Sexton asked are any of the kids tied to the opioid crisis.   Mr. 

Hardison said the kids that currently need foster homes have experienced sexual abuse and violence.  

Mr. Potter said DSS has requested more funds from the County this year.  Commissioner Riddick asked 

what the criteria for being a foster parent is.  Mr. Hardison said he will get a pamphlet to Commissioner 

Riddick.  Mr. Hardison said DSS is compiling the interest for the training classes that Commissioner 

Sexton spoke of.  Commissioner Riddick asked who needs to be contacted if they want to be a foster 

parent.  Mr. Hardison said to contact DSS and ask to speak someone in Child Protective Services.  

 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:  Mr. Potter went over the budget transfers and 

amendments below and the Finance Officer’s Report.   

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 
 

Commissioner Phelps asked about BA #2018-44 for part-time help for the County 

Manager’s Office.  Commissioner Phelps inquired if the County still has a floater.  Mr. Potter 

said no there is not a floater anymore.   Mr. Potter stated that when the County Manager’s Office 



 

had an employee out on a medical emergency, the County Manager’s Office asked someone to 

come in and help cover the County Manager’s Office for a couple of weeks. 

 

Commissioner Phelps asked about BA #2018-46 for the Airport.  Mr. Potter said this is 

the beginning of the parallel taxiway project.  This was not figured into this year’s budget until 

the County knew we would get the project.  This will be a 100% reimbursement.  NCDOT has 

taken over this project and there is not a local match required at this point.  

 

Commissioner Riddick made a motion to approve BT  #2018-38, BT #2018-39, BT 

#2018-40, BA #2018–41, BA #2018–42, BA #2018–43, BA #2018–44, BA #2018–45 and BA 

#2018–46 as presented. Commissioner Walker seconded, motion passed unanimously. 

 

Mr. Potter said that most departments should be at 66%.  Costs to watch are Detention 

and the Airport (because the County just had to buy jet fuel). 

 

Commissioner Phelps asked if the Article 40/42 money has been given to the schools.  He 

asked about the $133,000 for capital outlay.  Mr. Potter said the total budgeted was $400,000 of 

which $266,000 has already been expended to the school, and an additional $133,000 will be 

expended to the school by the end of this fiscal year.  Mr. Potter stated in response to a question 

from Mr. Phelps that the capital outlay money is not given to the schools on top of sales tax 

money.  Commissioner Phelps said he would like to discuss this during the budget.  

 

 OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIRPERSON, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ 

ATTORNEY OR CLERK:   

 

 Commissioner Walker said Pastor Eddie McNair called him and asked if could ask a 

question to the Board.  Commissioner Walker asked the Board if that was appropriate.  The 

Board agreed for Pastor McNair to speak.  Pastor McNair told the Board that he is working with 

A&T University and will come back to the Board with more information on his project.  

 

 Mr. Potter mentioned to the Board that budgets are due to him this Thursday (March 

8). 

 

 Mr. Potter said the County is also having email issues again but doesn’t think it will 

take as long to get fixed.  Mr. Potter also noted that he will be out of office on Friday afternoon 

but will be available by cell phone. 

 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS 

§143-318.11 (a)(3) (attorney-client privilege), NCGS §143-318.11 (a)(6) (personnel) and 

NCGS §143-318.11 (a)(1) (confidential information). Commissioner Riddick seconded, 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

Back in Open Session, Commissioner Phelps made a motion to recuse Commissioner 

Riddick from voting on the request from the Town of Plymouth re: the Clagon, et al. 

property at 103 East Water Street.  Commissioner Walker seconded; motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

 Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve conveying the property at 103 East 

Water Street to the Town of Plymouth for $11,134.19 (the amount owed to Washington 



 

County for back taxes, penalties and fees on the date of foreclosure)  and the restriction 

that the property be restricted to public use only, or if subsequently sold, that the proceeds 

of any such sale,  after first deducting any demolition or redevelopment expenses incurred 

by the Town of Plymouth for the property, be divided by the governmental units in 

proportion to their original outstanding tax liabilities owed on the foreclosed property.  

Commissioner Walker seconded, motion carried unanimously. 

 

At 7:41 PM, with no further business to discuss, Commissioner Phelps made a motion 

to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Walker seconded, motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

______________________________  _____________________________ 

      Tracey A. Johnson    Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCCCC 

           Chair                  Clerk to the Board    

 

  


